
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 
that the Regular Meeting of the  

Camarillo Airport Authority and Oxnard Airport Authority 
  will be held on: 

Thursday   __     October 12, 2023 6:30 P.M. 

DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

CONFERENCE ROOM 
555 AIRPORT WAY, SUITE B 

CAMARILLO, CA 

Public Participation Options and Instructions: 

1. Attend in-person at the address listed above.

2. You may observe the meeting via the Department of Airports YouTube channel.
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC4jLWASMGn4wTrEPdT8BOTQ?view_as=subscriber

3. Participate and provide public comment via Zoom:

WEBINAR:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86141339438?pwd=zSqeaLpaAXMb4NzR1Jer1IBNZiEASu.1
TELEPHONE: 1-669-444-9171
MEETING ID: 861 4133 9438
MEETING PASSCODE:  023045

Clink on the link above and enter your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to
speak. Members of the public who wish to comment should use the “Raise Hand” function
in Zoom when the Chair of the Airport Authority calls for public comment. The secretary will
call your name when it is your turn to speak. You will be prompted to unmute your
microphone. Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name.

If joining by telephone, press star (*) then 9 on their touch-tone phone when the Chair of the
Airport Authority calls for public comment. The secretary will call the last 4 digits of your
phone number when it is your turn to speak. You will be prompted to unmute your phone.
Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name.

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC4jLWASMGn4wTrEPdT8BOTQ?view_as=subscriber
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86141339438?pwd=zSqeaLpaAXMb4NzR1Jer1IBNZiEASu.1


                    
 

Public members will have 3 minutes to speak on an agenda item. Please ensure that all 
background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.). 
 

4. Email or Mail Public Comment in Advance of the Meeting: 
 
If you wish to make a written comment on a specific agenda item by email or mail, please 
submit your comment by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. Your written comment 
will be distributed to Commission members and made part of the permanent meeting 
record. Written comments will be made available to the public and can be viewed online at 
vcairports.org/camarillo-and-oxnard-meeting-archives or in person at the Airport 
Administration Office located at 555 Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, CA 93010.  
 
Public comments submitted in writing are public record and subject to disclosure. An 
unredacted version is made available when records are requested by a Public Records Act 
request. Please do not submit personal contact information you do not want to be made 
public.  
 
Comments submitted by email can be sent to airportinfo@ventura.org. In the Subject Line 
of the email please indicate “CAA/OAA Meeting Comment” and the Agenda item number 
on which you are commenting (e.g., CAA/OAA Meeting Comment – Agenda Item No. 5) 
then proceed with your comment in the body of the e-mail.  
 
Comments submitted by mail can be sent to 555 Airport Way, Ste. B, Camarillo, CA 93010, 
Attention: Denise Arreola.  In the Subject Line of the correspondence please indicate 
“CAA/OAA Meeting Comment” and the Agenda item number on which you are 
commenting (e.g., CAA/OAA Meeting Comment – Agenda Item No. 5) then proceed with 
your comment in the body of the correspondence.  
 

  

2

https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/___mailto:airportinfo@ventura.org___.YzJ1OmNvdmF2YW5hbjpjOm86MThjODE3NTQ2MDk3ZGVjOTI5NDBiNjY0ZTZmY2JiZDY6Njo4ZDRiOjBkMmFhYThkYTZiZGZmNTk2ZGY2Y2Q0OTBmMmFiNTE1YjlmMDA0ZDBiNWMxZWNkMWE1ZmM4NzAxNDJjNGY3Yzk6cDpU


                    
 

                  AGENDA 
           
1. CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. AGENDA REVIEW  
 
4. APPROVAL of MINUTES – July 13, 2023, and September 14, 2023 
                                          
5. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 
Airport-related comments will be limited to a maximum of three minutes per item. The 
public comment period is reserved for issues NOT on the agenda.  
 
In-Person Public Comment: 
Speakers must fill out a speaker card and submit it to the secretary before the end of the 
public comment period.  
 
Speaker cards for issues listed on the agenda must be presented before the item is up for 
consideration. Speakers will be called when the item is presented.  
 
Zoom Public Comment: 
Speakers should press the raise hand button, or if joining by telephone, press star (*) then 9 
to be added to the speaker queue when the Chair of the Airport Authority calls for public 
comment. 
 
E-mail or Mail Public Comment: 
If you wish to make a written comment on a specific agenda item by email or mail, please submit 
your comment by 12:00 p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. Your written comment will be 
distributed to Commission members and made part of the permanent meeting record. Written 
comments will be made available to the public and can be viewed online at 
vcairports.org/camarillo-and-oxnard-meeting-archives or in person at the Airport Administration 
Office located at 555 Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, CA 93010.  

 
Public comments submitted in writing are public record and subject to disclosure. An 
unredacted version is made available when records are requested by a Public Records Act 
request. Please do not submit personal contact information you do not want to be made public.  
 
  

3

Pages 8-26



                    
 

6. NEW BUSINESS   
  
CAMARILLO AND OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 
A. Subject: Review and Approval of the 2024 Camarillo and Oxnard Airport Authorities 

Meeting Calendar  
  
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Authorities review and approve the 2024 Camarillo and Oxnard Airport 
Authorities meeting calendar.  
 
B. Subject: Receive and File a Monthly Staff Update from Communications and   

Engagement Manager Regarding Ventura County Airports 
   
Recommendation: 
  
Receive and file a monthly staff update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
regarding Ventura County Airports.  
 
C. Subject:  Receive and File Financial Reports for the Period Ending June 30, 2023 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authorities receive and file the unaudited financial reports 
for the period ending June 30, 2023. 
 
D. Subject:  Receive and File a Staff Update on Current Part 150 Noise Compatibility    

Studies for Camarillo and Oxnard Airports 
  
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file an update on current Part 150 airport noise compatibility studies for Camarillo 
and Oxnard Airports.    
 
7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
8. REPORTS  
 
Report items listed below are presented to the Airport Authorities for information only, 
at this time. The report items require no action or are not ready for the Airport Authorities’ 
consideration. The Airport Authorities may refer these items to the Department of 
Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda.   
 

Monthly Activity Report – August  2023 
Monthly Noise Complaints – August 2023  
Consultant Reports (Coffman Associates) – August 2023 
Consultant Reports (Jviation – Camarillo Airport) – August 2023 

4

Pages 27-28

Pages 29-30

Pages 31-39

Page 40

Pages 41-56



                    
 

Consultant Reports (Jviation – Oxnard Airport) – August 2023 
Airport Tenant Projects –September 2023 
Project Status Report – September  2023 
Meeting Calendar 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
Correspondence items listed below are presented to the Airport Authorities for 
information only, at this time. The correspondence items require no action or are not 
ready for the Airport Authorities’ consideration. The Airport Authorities may refer these 
items to the Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda. 
 
Letter to Accurate Steel of Ohio LLC dated September 1, 2023, from Communications & 
Engagement Manager Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures 
Between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
Letter to 9K Air LLC dated September 1, 2023, from Communications & Engagement Manager 
Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures Between 12:00 a.m. and 
5:00 a.m. 
 
Letter to Noel Air LLC dated September 11, 2023, from Communications & Engagement 
Manager Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures Between 12:00 
a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
Department of Airports News dated September 14, 2023, re Local Pilot Volunteers Time, 
Resources to Conservation Work 
 
Newspaper posting in Vida Bilingual Publication dated September 21, 2023, re Community 
Invitation to Part 150 Study at Oxnard Performing Arts Center 
 
Article dated September 23, 2023, by Camarillo Acorn re Community Invited to Airport Noise 
Workshop (including flyer) 
 
Article dated September 24, 2023, by Vida, a Bilingual Publication re Mural Dedication in Honor 
of Carmen Ramirez  
 
Department of Airports Airport Noise Study Fact Sheet for Part 150 Studies in Oxnard dated 
September 2023  
   
10. AUTHORITY COMMENTS – Comments by Authority members on matters deemed 
appropriate.  
 
 
 

5

Pages 57-76



                    
 

11.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regular Authority meeting will be on Thursday, November 9, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in 
the Department of Airports Administration Office Conference Room, 555 Airport Way, Suite B, 
Camarillo, California. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, IF YOU NEED 
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT 
DENISE ARREOLA AT (805) 388-4372. NOTIFICATION 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING WILL ENABLE THE DEPARTMENT OF AIRPORTS TO MAKE REASONABLE 
ARRANGEMENTS TO ENSURE ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING. 
  

6



                    
 

 
 

 
Webinar Instructions 

 
Public link to Zoom webinar: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86141339438?pwd=zSqeaLpaAXMb4NzR1Jer1IBNZiEASu.1       
 
Webinar ID:  861 4133 9438 
Passcode:  023045 

    Phone Number: 1-669-444-9171 
           
 
Cell Phone or Computer with Audio (Microphone) Feature:  Click on the link above and enter 
passcode.  Enter your name so we may call on you when it is your turn to speak.   
 
The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item.  At that time, raise your hand by 
clicking the Raise Hand button.  Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking. 
 
Computer without Audio (Microphone) Feature:  Click on the link above and enter passcode.  
This will allow you to view and listen to the meeting.  In order to speak, follow the instructions below 
for Telephone.  
 
Telephone:  You may observe the meeting via the Department of Airports YouTube channel. If you 
are interested in speaking to an item, you can call into one of the phone lines listed above, and when 
prompted enter the Webinar ID and Passcode shown above.  Once in the meeting, you will be 
listening to the meeting through your phone handset.   
 
The Chairperson will ask if anyone wishes to speak to the item.  At that time, raise your hand by 
dialing *9.  Follow the instructions below regarding Speaking. 
 

Speaking 
When it is your turn to speak, the Chairperson will call your name or the last 4 digits of your phone 
number if you are calling from a phone, and you will have 3 minutes to speak.  Please ensure that 
all background noise is muted (TV, radio, etc.).  You will be prompted to unmute your 
microphone/phone.  Unmute and begin speaking; start by stating your name. 

The timer on the screen will count down your 3 minutes.  The timer starts green indicating you have 
3 minutes; when the time hits 1 minute remaining, the timer will change to yellow; when the 3 minutes 
have elapsed, the timer will turn red.  At that time, your microphone will be muted and we will move 
onto the next speaker.  If you called in on one of the phone lines listed above, you will not be able 
to see the timer.  Instead, you will be prompted when the 3 minutes has begun; when the time hits 
1 minute remaining; when the 3 minutes have elapsed. 

 

  

7

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86141339438?pwd=zSqeaLpaAXMb4NzR1Jer1IBNZiEASu.1


 
 

                                 
CAMARILLO AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 

MINUTES 
 

July 13, 2023 
 

  
 1.  CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE 
 
CAA Chair, Scott Barer, called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. and OAA Chair Eugene 
Fussell led the pledge of allegiance.  

 
 2. ROLL CALL 
 
CAA PRESENT CAA ABSENT OAA PRESENT OAA ABSENT 

   Kelly Long 
Vianey Lopez  
Susan Santangelo 
Martita Martinez-Bravo 
Scott Barer 
 

   
 

Kelly Long 
Vianey Lopez  
Bert Perello (L) 
Gabe Teran  
Eugene Fussell  
 

 
 

Excused (E)    
Late (L)    
Alternate (Alt)    

 
AIRPORT STAFF   
Keith Freitas, Director 
Dave Nafie, Deputy Director   

 

Erin Powers, Projects Administrator 
Madeline Herrle, Lease Manager 
Jannette Jauregui, Communications &  
Engagement Manager 
Denise Arreola, Management Assistant  
 
 

 

8



 
 

   
3.    AGENDA REVIEW 
 
Director, Keith Freitas addresses the amendment to agenda item 6.B that was sent to the 
Authorities. 
 
CAA Chair Scott Barer moved to hear agenda item 6.I, Receive and File Presentation on the 
Wings Over Camarillo Airshow at Camarillo Airport, as the first agenda item. 
  

4.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 11, 2023 
   

Camarillo Airport Authority: Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo moved to approve 
the May 11, 2023, meeting minutes and Mayor Susan Santangelo seconded the motion. 
All members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously 5-0.  
 
Oxnard Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to approve the May 11, 2023, 
meeting minutes and Councilmember Gabe Teran seconded the motion. All members 
voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously 5-0.  
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 

No public comments.  
 
6.    NEW BUSINESS 
 

CAMARILLO AND OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

I. Subject:   Receive and File a Presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show 
at Camarillo Airport 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file a presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show taking place on August 
19-20, 2023, at Camarillo Airport. 
 
Bob Trimborn, Operations Director, and Bill Thomas, Air Boss of the Wings Over Camarillo 
presented a detailed Power Point and answered various questions from the Authorities in 
regard to the event. 
 
Camarillo Airport Authority: Supervisor Kelly Long moved to receive and file the 
presentation and Chair Scott Barer seconded the motion. All members voted and the 
motion passed unanimously 5-0. 

9



 
Oxnard Airport Authority: Supervisor Vianey Lopez moved to receive and file the 
presentation and Supervisor Kelly Long seconded the motion. All members voted and 
the motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
CAMARILLO AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 
A. Subject: Receive and File an Update on Current Airport Layout Plan (ALP) Update 

for Camarillo Airport   
 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file a staff update on current ALP Update for Camarillo Airport  
 
Projects Administrator Erin Powers provided staff’s report. 
 
Action: Chair Scott Barer moved to receive and file the update and Mayor Susan 
Santangelo seconded the motion. All members voted in favor and the motion passed 
unanimously 5-0. 
 
B. Subject: Approval of, and Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to 

Sign, the Third Amendment to Lease with Airport Properties Limited, LLC 
for Development of a Hangar Complex at the Camarillo Airport 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors: 
 
Approve and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, the attached Third 
Amendment to Lease with Airport Properties Limited, LLC (APL) for development of a hangar 
complex at the Camarillo Airport (Exhibit 1). 
 
Lease Manager Madeline Herrle provided staff’s report.  
 
Action: Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo moved to approve staff’s 
recommendation and Mayor Susan Santangelo seconded the motion. All members 
voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously 5-0.  
 
OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 
C. Subject: Receive and File an Update on the Oxnard Airport Taxiway Connectors 
  A-E Reconstruction Project 
 
 

10



 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file an update on the Oxnard Airport Taxiway Connectors A-E Reconstruction 
project 

 
Projects Administrator Erin Powers provided staff’s report. Director Keith Frietas assisted in 
providing further updates and remarks regarding questions from the Authorities.  
 
Action: Councilmember Bert Perello moved to receive and file staff’s update and 
Councilmember Gabe Teran seconded the motion. All members voted in favor and the 
motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
D. Subject:  Authorization for the Director of Airports or his designee to Accept on 

Behalf of the County an Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting (ARFF) 
emergency response vehicle from Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport 
Authority, with an estimated value of $30,000; Approval of, and 
Authorization for the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, a Sale 
Agreement with the City and County of San Francisco to purchase a 
surplus ARFF vehicle for $14,000. 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors: 
 
1. Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to accept on behalf of the County a 

surplus ARFF emergency response vehicle from Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport 
Authority with an estimated value of $30,000; and  

 
2. Approve, and Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign and execute a 

Sale Agreement (Exhibit 1) with the City and County of San Francisco to purchase a 
surplus ARFF vehicle for $14,000. 

 
Director Keith Freitas presented the item and welcomed the Authorities comments where he 
provided a complete description of the ARFF vehicle.  
 
Action: Councilmember Bert Perello moved to approve staff’s recommendation and 
Councilmember Gabe Teran seconded the motion. All members voted in favor and the 
motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
E. Subject: Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee, to Accept and  Sign   

Federal Aviation Administration Grant No. 3-06-0179-043-2023, When 
Offered, in an Estimated Amount of $19,000,000, Which Will Provide 
Funds for the Taxiway F Reconstruction at Oxnard Airport; Authorization 

11



for the Director of Airports or Designee, to Apply for, Accept, and Sign for 
a Matching Grant from Caltrans, if Offered; and Authorization for County 
Counsel to Execute the Certificate of Sponsor's Attorney Required by 
Federal Aviation Administration Grant Agreements 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors: 
 
1. Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee, to accept and sign Federal Aviation 

Administration (FAA) Grant No. 3-06-0179-043-2023, when offered, in an estimated 
amount of $19,000,000, which will provide funds for the Taxiway F Reconstruction at 
Oxnard Airport; and; 

 
2. Authorize the Director of Airports or his designee, to apply for, accept, and sign for a 

matching grant from Caltrans, if offered; and 
 

3. Authorize County Counsel to execute the Certificate of Sponsor's Attorney required by 
FAA Grant Agreements 

 
Projects Administrator Erin Powers reviewed a Power Point presentation and received 
comments and addressed concerns from the Authorities. 
 
Action: Supervisor Vianey Lopez moved to approve staff’s recommendations and 
Councilmember Gabe Teran seconded the motion. All members voted in favor and the 
motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
CAMARILLO AND OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 
F. Subject:   Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to Award Annual 

Consulting-Services Contracts for FY 2023-2024 to Coffman Associates, 
Inc., Jviation, a Woolpert Company, Mead and Hunt, Inc., and The Adams 
Companies, LLC, and to Issue Work Orders Against These Contracts 

 
Recommendations: 
  
Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors: 
 
1.  Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to award annual consulting- services 

contracts for fiscal year 2023-2024 to the consultants listed in the Annual Consultant 
Services Contracts Summary (Exhibit 1) using a contract form negotiated in compliance 
with the County of Ventura Public Works Agency Project Processing Procedures Manual 
(an exemplar contract form is attached as Exhibit 2); and 

 

12



2.  Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to issue work orders against such 
contracts for up to $35,000 each project for planning of construction projects not yet 
approved by your committee, and for up to $200,000 each work order for other services. 

 
Projects Administrator Erin Powers provided staff’s report. Director Keith Frietas assisted in 
providing additional updates and remarks on questions from the Authorities. 
 
Camarillo Airport Authority: Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo moved to approve 
staff’s recommendations and Chair Scott Barer seconded the motion. All members 
voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Bert Perello moved to approve staff’s 
recommendations and Supervisor Vianey Lopez seconded the motion. All members 
voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
G. Subject:  Receive and File an Update on Current Part 150 Noise Compatibility 

Studies for Camarillo and Oxnard Airports 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Receive and file an update on current Part 150 airport noise compatibility studies for 
Camarillo and Oxnard Airports 
 
Projects Administrator Erin Powers provided staff’s report. Communications & Engagement 
Manager Janette Jauregui assisted in providing responses to questions from Supervisor 
Vianey Lopez. Councilmember Gabe Terran provided further comment on how he can further 
relay messages to the community.  

 
Camarillo Airport Authority: Mayor Susan Santangelo moved to receive and file the 
update and Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo seconded the motion. All members 
voted and the motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Gabe Teran moved to receive and file the 
update and Councilmember Bert Perello seconded the motion. All members voted and 
the motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
H. Subject: Receive and File a Staff Update Regarding Fly Friendly VC Progress 

Report 
   
Recommendation: 
  
Receive and file a staff update regarding Fly Friendly VC Progress Report 
 
Communications & Engagement Manager Jannette Jauregui provided staff’s report. 

13



 
Camarillo Airport Authority: Chair Scott Barer moved to receive and file the update 
and Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo seconded the motion. All members voted 
and the motion passed unanimously 5-0. 
 
Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Gabe Teran moved to receive and file the 
update and Councilmember Bert Perello seconded the motion. All members voted and 
the motion passed unanimously 5-0 
 
7.    DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Director Keith Freitas addresses the methods on how the public, who are unable to appear 
in person or zoom, can submit their comments to the Authorities meeting. Members of the 
public may submit their comment by 12:00 p.m. the day before the meeting by mail, or e-
mail. The Department of Airports method mirrors the Board of Supervisors’ process. 
 
The Department of Airports introduced an online payment portal option for tenants to utilize.  
In addition to paying in person at the office or mailing a check, tenants can now easily pay 
online. The payment portal has received positive feedback from tenants. 
 
The Department was invited to speak by Channel Islands Neighborhood Council. Staff will 
attend (Deputy Director, Dave Nafie) on July 27, 2023, and will be discussing the Oxnard 
Airport construction project and any other airport related topics. 
 
The Department of Airports is proud to announce their on-going support of the annual 
Department of Animal Services “Clear the Shelters” event on August 26, 2023, located at the 
Camarillo Airport. 
 
Oxnard Airport staff recognized by Director Keith Freitas for their involvement in hosting the 
“Career Exploration” Field Trip organized by the Boys and Girls Club of Oxnard on July 17, 
2023. Staff will give a tour of Oxnard Airport to the kids while discussing careers in aviation. 
 
On July 1, 2023, Oxnard Airport opened its parking lot to the first Artisan Market. This event 
included over 22 vendors and food trucks. The next Artisan Market event will be August 5, 
2023 at Oxnard Airport. 
 
Cloud Nine is in the process of phasing in tenants. Their first tenant has officially moved in 
two aircrafts. The four 25,000 square foot hangars are dedicated to private individuals and 
small corporate companies.  
 
Camarillo Airport was honored to have Congresswoman Julia Brownley on June 28, 2023. 
The Congresswoman and her staff received a tour of the Airport, including a ride in a Sheriff 
helicopter. The Department of Airports is appreciative of her continuous support of both 
airports.  

14



 
Ojai Valley School Summer Camp to participate in field trip on July 14, 2023, at Oxnard 
Airport. The children will take a tour of the Oxnard Airport control tower, an ARFF truck, and 
wrap up their field trip at Aspen Helicopters. 
 
Director’s Report was received and filed.  
 

8. REPORTS  
 
Report items listed below are presented to the Airport Authorities for information only, 
at this time. The report items require no action or are not ready for the Airport 
Authorities’ consideration. The Airport Authorities may refer these items to the 
Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda.   
 

Monthly Activity Report – April, May 2023 
Monthly Noise Complaints – April, May 2023 
Consultant Reports (Coffman Associates) – April, May 2023 
Consultant Reports (Jviation – Camarillo Airport) – April, May 2023 
Consultant Reports (Jviation – Oxnard Airport) – April, May 2023 
Consultant Reports (Mead & Hunt) – April 2023 
Consultant Reports (Mead & Hunt) – May, June 2023  
Airport Tenant Projects – July 2023 
Project Status Report – April 2023 
Financial Statements Third Quarter – FY 2023/2024 
Meeting Calendar 

 
Reports were received and filed. 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
Correspondence items listed below are presented to the Airport Authorities for 
information only, at this time. The correspondence items require no action or are not 
ready for the Airport Authorities’ consideration. The Airport Authorities may refer 
these items to the Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future 
agenda.   
 
Letter to customer dated April 18, 2023, from Lease Manager Madeline Herrle re: Public 
Records Request with estimate for public records request. 
 
Department of Airports Announcement dated April 25, 2023, re: Ventura County Department 
of Airports Undergoes Taxiway Reconstruction, Addresses Concerns Related to the Project 
 
Letter to customer dated May 1, 2023, from Lease Manager Madeline Herrle re: Notice of 
Rent Adjustment June 1, 2023 

15



 
Letter to customer dated May 1, 2023, from Lease Manager Madeline Herrle re: Letter of 
Credit Number S100410, Amendment Number 001 dated April 14, 2023, Golden West 
Terminals 
 
Letter to TopFlight Aviation dated May 11, 2023, from Communications & Engagement 
Officer Jannette Jauregui re: Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures Between 12:00 
a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
Letter to customer dated May 14, 2023, from Lease Manager Madeline Herrle re: FAA MOA 
No. 690EG4-20-L-00090 CMA – Camarillo Airport, Camarillo California 
 
Letter to 24/7 Jet, Inc., dated May 29, 2023, from Communications & Engagement Officer 
Jannette Jauregui re: Camarillo Hours of Operation 
 
Letter to Director of Ventura County Animal Services, Jackie Rose, dated June 1, 2023, from 
Deputy Director, Dave Nafie re: Clear the Shelter Event – August 26, 2023 
 
Letter to Director of Ventura County Animal Services, Jackie Rose, dated June 1, 2023, from 
Deputy Director, Dave Nafie re: Modification to side yard area at NWC of Aviation Drive and 
Convair Street (with attachment) 
 
Letter to Ryan Smith, Senior Real Estate Officer, dated June 1, 2023, from Lease Manager 
Madeline Herrle re File no. 6375-001 Department of Food & Agriculture 295 Durley Ave, 
Suites A & B, Camarillo CA 93010 – Notice of Lease Termination 
 
Letter to Channel Islands Aviation, Inc., dated June 11, 2023, from Communications & 
Engagement Officer Jannette Jauregui re: Camarillo Hours of Operation Departures Between 
12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
Letter to President – Board of Directors – NAMI Ventura County dated June 13, 2023, from 
Lease Manager Madeline Herrle re: Early Lease Termination – Camarillo Office 
 
Article dated June 17, 2023, from Camarillo Acorn re: Airports Set Second Phase of Noise 
Study 
 
Letter to pilot with registration pending dated June 23, 2023, from Communications & 
Engagement Officer Janette Jauregui re: Camarillo Hours of Operation Departures Between 
12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 
 
Correspondence was received and filed. 
 
 
 

16



10. AUTHORITY COMMENTS

Supervisor Kelly Long expressed her gratitude to the Department of Airports for addressing 
the concerns of the community after several citizens met with her and Chief of Staff, Brian 
Miller, to discuss their concerns of and desires for the Airports. Supervisor Long emphasizes 
how valuable it is for all Board, Authority and Commission members to listen to the public 
concerns and get to know the community to better respond to their concerns. Supervisor 
Long further stated the community was very thankful for the noise study done by the 
Department. Finally, Supervisor Long addressed the topic of members of the public 
comments during meetings. Public comments for the meeting today were received and 
appreciated. She assures the public that their comments are being heard. 

Councilmember Gabe Teran compliments the Airport staff for being proactive and 
transparent in their handling of the soil stored at Oxnard Airport regarding the taxiway 
reconstruction project. He reiterates to the public currently watching or streaming later, that 
if there are questions, the Department has made themselves available to address those 
concerns. Councilmember Teran further thanked member of the public, Pat Thomas, for her 
comment during the meeting regarding the speaking/microphone issues.  

Councilmember Bert Perrello credits the Department with a first-class job for the fielding and 
fencing job at the Oxnard Airport reconstruction project site. He commented that this is a 
tremendous improvement and good-looking fencing to the area.  

Chair Scott Barer gives Barb Filkins in the audience a heartfelt thank you for being a tireless 
advocate and supporter of Fly Friendly VC. Chair Barer states his appreciation to Barb Filkins 
and the importance of providing her plane, fuel, and time to fly the patterns. 

11. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the July 13, 2023, meeting of the Camarillo Airport Authority 
and Oxnard Airport Authority was adjourned with all Authorities in favor at 8:43 p.m.  

The next regular Authority meeting is scheduled on Thursday, August 10, 2023, at 6:30 
p.m. in the Department of Airports Administration Office Conference Room, 555 Airport Way,
Suite B, Camarillo, California.

KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E. 
Administrative Secretary 

17



CAMARILLO AIRPORT AUTHORITY AND OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

MINUTES 

September 14, 2023 

1. CALL to ORDER and PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

CAA Chair, Scott Barer, called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. and Councilmember Martita 
Martinez-Bravo led the pledge of allegiance.  

2. ROLL CALL

CAA PRESENT CAA ABSENT OAA PRESENT  OAA ABSENT 
Vianey Lopez 
Martita Martinez-Bravo 
Scott Barer 

Kelly Long (E) 
Susan Santangelo (E) 

Vianey Lopez  
Bert Perello (L) 
Gabe Teran  
Eugene Fussell 

Kelly Long (E) 

Excused (E) 
Late (L) 
Alternate (Alt) 

AIRPORT STAFF  
Dave Nafie, Deputy Director   
Erin Powers, Projects Administrator 
Madeline Herrle, Lease Manager 
Jannette Jauregui, Communications & Engagement Manager 
Ana Castro, Program Administrator  
Josh Cox, Airport Operations Officer 
Denise Arreola, Management Assistant  

18



3. AGENDA REVIEW

Due to clerical error, minutes from July 13, 2023, were inadvertently omitted from the agenda 
packet sent to the Authorities and posted on the Department website. Agenda item #4 
(APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 13, 2023), is tabled for review at the next Authority 
meeting. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 13, 2023

CAA Chair Scott Barer tabled approval of July 13, 2023, minutes to the next 
Authorities meeting scheduled for October 12, 2023.  

5. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Public comments heard. 

6. NEW BUSINESS

OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

A. Subject: Receive and File a Staff Update on the Oxnard Airport Taxiway
Connectors A-E Reconstruction Project 

Recommendation: 

Receive and file a staff update on the Oxnard Airport Taxiway Connectors A-E 
Reconstruction Project. 

Erin Powers, Projects Administrator provided the staff update and welcomed comments 
from the Authorities.  

Action: Councilmember Gabe Terran moved to receive and file the update and 
Councilmember Bert Perello seconded the motion. All members voted in favor and 
the motion passed unanimously 4-0. 

B. Subject: Approval of Plans and Specifications for the Reconstruction of Taxiway
F (renamed A) at Oxnard Airport, Including Addenda Nos. 1-2; Waiver of 
Any Minor Irregularities in the Bid; Award a Contract for the Base Bid 
Schedule I to Security Paving Company, Inc., in the Amount of 
$17,365,009.50, on the Basis of the Lowest Responsive Bid, Conditioned 
Upon Receipt of a Federal Aviation Administration and/or 
CalTrans Grants and/or Airport Enterprise Funds Sufficient to Fund 
Project Costs; Authorization for the Director of Airports, or Designee, to 
Execute the Subject Contract, if Awarded (Exhibit 1 is available for 
review on the Department of Airports website www.vcairports.org) 

19

http://www.vcairports.org/


Recommendations: 

Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors: 

1. Approve the plans and specifications (Exhibit 1) for the Reconstruction of Taxiway F
(renamed A) at Oxnard Airport, including Addenda Nos. 1-2 (Exhibit 2);

2. Waive any minor irregularities in the bids;

3. Award a Contract for the Base Bid Schedule I to Security Paving Company, Inc., in the
Amount of $17,365,009.50, on the basis of the lowest responsive bid, conditioned upon
receipt of a Federal Aviation Administration and/or CalTrans grants and/or Airport
Enterprise Funds sufficient to fund project costs; and

4. Authorize the Director of Airports, or his designee, to execute the subject
Contract if awarded (Exhibit 3).

Erin Powers, Projects Administrator presented the item with a Power Point for the Authorities 
and welcomed comments and responded to questions from the Authorities.  

Action: Councilmember Gabe Terran moved approve staff’s recommendation of 
Plans and Specifications to Reconstruction of Taxiway F (renamed A); waive any 
minor irregularities, award a contract for the base bid schedule I to Security Paving 
Company, Inc., in the amount of $17,365,009.50; and authorize the Director of Airports 
or his designee to execute the subject contract and Vice Chair Supervisor Vianey 
Lopez seconded the motion. All members voted and the motion passed unanimously 
4-0.

CAMARILLO AND OXNARD AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

C. Subject: Receive and File a Staff Presentation on Current Airport Planning
Projects for Camarillo and Oxnard Airports 

Recommendation: 

Receive and file a staff presentation on current airport planning projects for Camarillo and 
Oxnard Airports. 

Erin Powers, Projects Administrator provided the staff presentation and welcomed 
comments and responded to questions from the Authorities.  

Camarillo Airport Authority: Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo moved to receive 
and file the staff presentation and Vice Chair Supervisor Vianey Lopez seconded the 
motion. All members voted and the motion passed unanimously 3-0. 

Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Bert Perello moved to receive and file the 
staff presentation and Councilmember Gabe Terran seconded the motion. All 
members voted the motion passed unanimously 4-0. 

20



D. Subject: Receive and File a Monthly Staff Update from Communications and
Engagement Manager Regarding Ventura County Airports 

Recommendation: 

Receive and file a monthly staff update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
regarding Ventura County Airports. 

Jannette Jauregui, Communications and Engagement Manager presented the item with a 
feature story about Barb Filkins and welcomed comments from Authorities. 

Camarillo Airport Authority: Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo moved to receive 
and file the monthly staff update and Vice Chair Supervisor Vianey Lopez seconded 
the motion. All members voted and the motion passed unanimously 3-0. 

Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Bert Perello moved to receive and file the 
monthly staff update with the additional suggestion to forward this story to the local 
newspaper and Councilmember Gabe Terran seconded the motion. All members 
voted the motion passed unanimously 4-0. 

E. Subject:   Receive and File a Staff Presentation Regarding New Payment Portal
      Application for Camarillo and Oxnard Airport Tenants 

Recommendation: 

Receive and file a staff presentation regarding new Payment Portal Application for Camarillo 
and Oxnard Airport tenants. 

Dave Nafie, Deputy Director presented the item with a Power Point presentation with 
information as to the new Payment Portal. Questions from the Authorities were welcomed 
and addressed. 

Camarillo Airport Authority: Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo moved to receive 
and file the staff presentation and Chair Scott Barer seconded the motion. All 
members voted and the motion passed unanimously 3-0. 

Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Gabe Terran moved to receive and file the 
staff presentation and Councilmember Bert Perello seconded the motion. All 
members voted the motion passed unanimously 4-0. 

F. Subject: Receive and File a Status Report and a Proposed Timeline to Complete
the Private Hangar Lease Transition from a Month-to-Month Agreement 
to a Long Term (20-year) Ground Lease for Camarillo and Oxnard Airport 
Tenants 

21



Recommendation: 

Receive and file an update on current status of the transition for Private Hangar owners at 
the Oxnard and Camarillo Airports from the month-to-month lease to the long term (20-year) 
ground lease, and the proposed timeline and actions to complete the transition. 

Chair Scott Barer suggests extending the timeline until the end of the year and commence 
the Unlawful Detainer legal proceedings to January 2023 due to the upcoming holiday and 
vacation traveling. The suggestion is noted by staff. 

Camarillo Airport Authority: Chair Scott Barer moved to approve staff’s status report 
and Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo seconded the motion. All members voted 
in favor and the motion passed unanimously 3-0. 

Oxnard Airport Authority: Councilmember Gabe Terran moved to approve staff’s 
status report and Vice Chair Supervisor Vianey Lopez seconded the motion. All 
members voted in favor and the motion passed unanimously 4-0. 

7. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Deputy Director Dave Nafie presented the Director’s Report. 

On July 26, 2023, the Oxnard Airport hosted the Table Top Exercise conducted by the 
Oxnard Airport Operations team. This is an annual Part 139 FAA requirement, and it 
simulates the roles of Airport Operations, Fire and Police Departments on how to respond to 
various emergencies. It was a very successful interaction that was well received. Airport staff 
appreciates the response and assistance received from other public agencies. 

The Department thanks Congresswoman Julia Brownley and her staff for their visits at the 
Department of Airports in July and August. Congresswoman Brownley, who serves on the 
Transportation and Infrastructure Committee of the House, provided a statement that the 
House passed the 2023 FAA Reauthorization Bill and it read: “The FAA Reauthorization bill 
also addresses the needs of our general aviation airports - including the Oxnard and 
Camarillo airports in Ventura County - and has important provisions to improve consumer 
protections, address aviation noise concerns, and advance the integration of unmanned 
aerial systems and urban air mobility in the national airspace.” The Department commends 
Congresswoman Brownley’s for her continued support and her assistance at understanding 
the issues of the Department, including the on-going pavement projects at the Airports.  

The Department extends their gratitude to Supervisors Jeff Gorrell, Janice Parvin, and their 
induvial staff, for participating in Airport tours in the last few months. The tours provided an 
opportunity for Supervisors and their staff to learn more about the Department.   

22



The Department of Airports opened its parking lot to Vitalant for a Blood Drive held on August 
1, 2023. The blood drive was open to Airport employees, tenants of the Airport, employees 
of the business park and the public. 

The County of Ventura hosted a Career and Resource Expo at the Ventura County 
Government Center on August 2, 2023, and provided the Department of Airports an 
opportunity to participate in the event. Staff had great interaction with the public at the event 
and promoted three newly upcoming positions with the Department.  

On August 5, 2023, the last Artisan Market of the summer was held in the parking lot at the 
Oxnard Airport. The event had over 22 vendors. 

Members of the public for the Cabrillo Neighborhood Council Meeting invited staff to speak 
at their next meeting on October 12, 2023. The Department is delighted to participate in the 
meeting and learn more about their concerns. The Department hopes to provide a deeper 
understanding towards public issues at the Oxnard Airport.  

The Department has provided an accessible link on the Department website for the public to 
leave comments regarding the 500-year floodplain. The Camarillo Airport is located within a 
floodplain area, and it is a requirement of the FAA to allow for public comment. The deadline 
to submit a public comment is September 23, 2023. 

During the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show, Coulson Aviation graciously relocated their 
Chinook CH-47 Helitankers from Camarillo Airport to Oxnard Airport while remaining ready 
to serve the community in their role at knocking down fires.  

Ventura County Sheriff’s Department will be using the Camarillo Airport to host their annual 
“Coppers and Choppers” event on Saturday, September 23, 2023. While not an airport event, 
the Department is proud to shine spotlight on this event on airport grounds.  

Director’s Report was received and filed. 

8. REPORTS

Report items listed below are presented to the Airport Authorities for information only, 
at this time. The report items require no action or are not ready for the Airport 
Authorities’ consideration. The Airport Authorities may refer these items to the 
Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future agenda.   

Monthly Activity Report – June, July 2023 
Monthly Noise Complaints – June, July 2023  
Consultant Reports (Coffman Associates) – June, July 2023 
Consultant Reports (Jviation – Camarillo Airport) – June, July 2023 
Consultant Reports (Jviation – Oxnard Airport) – June, July 2023 

23



Consultant Reports (Mead & Hunt) – June 2023 
Airport Tenant Projects – August 2023 
Project Status Report – August 2023 

Reports were received and filed. 

9. CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence items listed below are presented to the Airport Authorities for 
information only, at this time. The correspondence items require no action or are not 
ready for the Airport Authorities’ consideration. The Airport Authorities may refer 
these items to the Department of Airports for investigation and report back on a future 
agenda.   

Department of Airports News dated July 20, 2023, re: Increase in Military Traffic from NBVC 
Point Mugu 

Department of Airports News dated July 26, 2023, re Updated: 2023 Wings Over Camarillo 

Letter to Hui Manchung dated July 31, 2023, from Communications & Engagement Manager 
Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures Between 12:00 a.m. 
and 5:00 a.m. 

Letter to Mustang Sally Aviation LLC dated July 31, 2023, from Communications & 
Engagement Manager Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures 
Between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 

Notice to Move Your Aircraft for Air Show dated August 3, 2023, to Camarillo Airport Tenants 
– Tie Down Rows 13-17 from Ventura County Department of Airports re Temporary Aircraft
Relocation for Wings Over Camarillo Air Show (and map)

Notice of Air Show Hangar Restrictions dated August 3, 2023, to Camarillo Airport Tenants 
from Ventura County Department of Airports re Temporary Restrictions for CMA Hangar 
Access 

Article dated August 5, 2023, by Camarillo Acorn re County Fire headquarters may leave 
Camarillo Airport 

Letter to Nakamura Hajime, Trustee dated August 5, 2023, from Communications & 
Engagement Manager Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures 
Between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 

Article dated August 9, 2023, by Ventura County Star re Oxnard Airport runway, other airfield 
roadways get $41 million rehab 

24



Article dated August 12, 2023, by Camarillo Acorn re Air show honors Korean War Veterans 

Letter to Air Discovery LA LLC dated August 12, 2023, from Communications & Engagement 
Manager Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures Between 
12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 

Letter to R Consulting & Sales Inc. dated August 20, 2023, from Communications & 
Engagement Manager Janette Jauregui re Camarillo Airport Hours of Operation Departures 
Between 12:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m. 

Article dated August 20, 2023, by Ventura County Star re Thousands show up for 42nd annual 
Wings Over Camarillo air show 

Article dated August 26, 2023, by Camarillo Acorn re Wings Clipped 

Department of Airport News dated August 28, 2023, re Ventura County Department of 
Airports Update to Taxiway Reconstruction Soil Storage 

Correspondence was received and filed. 

10. AUTHORITY COMMENTS

Councilmember Martita Martinez-Bravo shares Mayor Santangelo has an excused absence 
today and sends her regrets. She further shares that between herself and Mayor Santangelo, 
they received over 100 e-mails to the City of Camarillo regarding the noise from the Wings 
Over Camarillo Air Show. Councilmember Martinez-Bravo adds that it had been conveyed to 
her that a social media post was circulated which proposed to permanently cancel the Wings 
Over Camarillo Air Show. While she did not personally see the social media post in question, 
she confirms that the City of Camarillo has no vison to cancel the Air Show. The Wings Over 
Camarillo Air Show is here for all who have a passion and interest in aviation, especially 
children who envision one day flying a plane themselves. She is confident that the City of 
Camarillo and the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show staff will work together and find a solution 
that works for all, including for the animals at the shelter. Lastly, Councilmember Martinez-
Bravo closes with reiterating all e-mails regarding this topic were received, read and also had 
the opportunity to respond to some.  

A follow up comment from Vice Chair Supervisor Vianey Lopez thanks Councilmember 
Martinez-Bravo for addressing this topic. Additionally, Vice Chair Supervisor Lopez stated 
that Director Keith Freitas and Air Show Boss Bill Thomas have plans to further share 
discussion regarding the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show at a future Authority meeting. In 
closing, she thanks Bill Thomas for being present today and sharing the information he had 
in the time he had allotted.  

25



Councilmember Gabe Terran shares his gratitude towards the Department staff for their 
communication efforts shared with the public, especially to Communications and 
Engagement Manager Jannette Jauregui. Councilmember Terran is actively involved in 
reposting and sharing the information on social media to the community of Oxnard.  

Councilmember Bert Perello noted that on behalf of the City of Oxnard residents he speaks 
to, they are very appreciative of the information shared from the Department. Moreover, he 
mentions while he is not personally active social media, he does receive screen shots of 
social media posts from the community. One comment on the social media post stood out to 
him regarding the Chinook helitankers that were relocated to Oxnard Airport. The relocation 
caused some disturbance to the community and suggested the Department provide further 
notice in the future. To finish, he ends with his thoughtful comments on the Wings Over 
Camarillo Air Show, and a special thanks to Bill Thomas on a good job. 

Chair Eugene Fussell closes the Authority Comments portion of the meeting with his positive 
feedback regarding the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show, and to Barb Filkins for her continued 
efforts. Lastly, he offers his assistance to Lease Manager, Madeline Herrle in any way to 
finalize remaining private lease hangars. 

11. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the September 14, 2023, meeting of the Camarillo Airport 
Authority and Oxnard Airport Authority was adjourned with all Authorities in favor at 8:06 p.m. 

The next regular Authority meeting is scheduled on Thursday, October 12, 2023, at 6:30 
p.m. in the Department of Airports Administration Office Conference Room, 555 Airport Way,
Suite B, Camarillo, California.

KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E. 
Administrative Secretary 

26



 
 
 
October 12, 2023 
 
Camarillo Airport Authority   
Oxnard Airport Authority 
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 
  
Subject: Review and Approval of the 2024 Camarillo and Oxnard Airport 

Authorities Meeting Calendar  
   
Recommendation: 
 
Staff requests that your Authorities review and approve the 2024 Camarillo and Oxnard 
Airport Authorities meeting calendar.  
 
Discussion: 
 
The 2024 meeting calendar (Exhibit 1) is presented to your Airport Authorities for 
consideration and approval. The meeting calendar does not conflict with any national 
holidays.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please call me at (805) 388-4200.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E.  
Director of Airports 
 
Attachments: 
 
Exhibit 1 – 2024 Camarillo and Oxnard Airport Authorities Meeting Calendar  
 

27



28



October 11, 2023 

Aviation Advisory Commission 
Camarillo Airport Authority   
Oxnard Airport Authority 
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 

Subject: Receive and File a Monthly Staff Update from Communications and 
Engagement Manager Regarding Ventura County Airports 

Recommendation: 

Receive and file a monthly staff update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
regarding Ventura County Airports.  

Discussion: 

The County of Ventura Department of Airports was established in 1976 manage 
Camarillo Airport and Oxnard Airport. Together these Airports provide vital connections 
to the national airspace system and are home to many businesses and individual 
aircraft owners, all of whom contribute to the economic vitality of Ventura County and/or 
serve as philanthropic contributors through a variety of non-profit organizations. Such 
contributions are made without knowledge the majority of the general public. 

National and locally based organizations such as Pilots for Paws, Angel Flight, 
LightHawk, the VC Ninety-Nines, Experimental Aircraft Association, and more are 
dedicated to serving the community in a variety of ways and are among the unsung 
heroes in local aviation. 

The Department of Airports began a series highlighting these unsung heroes in 
September. This series will be showcased through periodic short feature stories 
designed to not only put a spotlight on those who tirelessly serve the community but to 
also help educate the community about a portion of local aviation that is often 
overlooked. 

Al Cossey, a Ventura County resident and recreational pilot, is dedicated to a variety of 
locally and nationally based non-profit organizations, including Angel Flight, for which he 
serves as a pilot for patients needing transportation to life-saving medical care 
throughout the region. Cossey’s story will be the second in the series.  

29



AAC/CAA/OAA 
Monthly Staff Update from Communications and Engagement Manager 
October 11, 2023 
Page 2 

If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Jannette Jauregui at (805) 388-
4287 me at (805) 388-4200.  

KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E. 
Director of Airports 

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



October 11, 2023 

Aviation Advisory Commission 
Camarillo Airport Authority 
Oxnard Airport Authority  
555 Airport Way, Suite B 
Camarillo, CA 93010 

Subject: Receive and File a Staff Update on Current Part 150 Noise Compatibility 
Studies for Camarillo and Oxnard Airports 

Recommendation: 

Receive and file an update on current Part 150 airport noise compatibility studies for 
Camarillo and Oxnard Airports. 

Discussion: 

The Airport is working with Coffman Associates and stakeholders to advance two noise 
studies approved and funded by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA):  the Oxnard 
Airport Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study and the Camarillo Airport Part 150 Noise 
Compatibility Study.  Staff will report on the recent public meetings held in September 
and next steps in the study process. 

If you have any questions regarding this item, please call Erin Powers at (805) 388-4205, 
or me at (805) 388-4200.  

KEITH FREITAS, A.A.E., C.A.E. 
Director of Airports 

40



Inventory Occupied Available Inventory Occupied Available

Hangars Hangars

Private 170 170 0 Private 79 79 0

County 160 160 0 County 66 66 0

Out of Service 16 0 0 Out of Service 6 0 0

Total 346 330 0 Total 151 145 0

Tie-downs Tie-downs

County 96 56 40 County 7 1 6

AVEX 25 18 7 Goldenwest Jet Center 15 11 4

Channel Island Aviation 35 30 5 Oxnard Jet Center 8 6 2

Visitor 35 Visitor 11

Total 191 104 52 Total 41 18 23

Aircraft Incidents:

Camarillo Oxnard Camarillo Oxnard

15,871 7,514 Current Month 6 2

17,043 7,478 Current year to date 29 2

-7% 0%

115,858 52,070

128,471 60,495

-10% -14%

Other:
Camarillo

0

0

33

120

24

** Includes approximate number of aircraft occupying space in both large and small hangars by agreement with lessee or licensee

15

2

Oxnard

0

9

Camarillo Oxnard

        MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT

Month ending August 31, 2023

Hangars and Tie-downs:

2Hangar Waiting List

% Change

Current year for the month

Last year for the month

Cards issued to transient overnight aircraft

Landside Citations issued

Airside Citations Issued

Airport Operations:

Other aircraft ** (Estimate)

Current year to date

Last year to date

% Change

CMA: 8/5  A/C loss of power;  8/5 Bird strike      

8/8 Trim tab running, alert 1;  8/11 Disabled a/c rwy 26  

8/29 Disabled a/c fluid leak; 8/31 Disabled a/c flat tire    

OXR: 8/19 Hot fueling, ARFF standby

41



Camarillo Noise Comment Report 

August 2023

Comments by Location Number of 
Comments 

Total Number 
of Households 

East Neighborhoods 0 

Midtown/Old Town 152 

North Neighborhoods 6 

Unspecified/Other 18 Unknown 

Type of Operation 

Takeoff/Departure 11 

Landing/Arrival 145 

Traffic Pattern 5 

Unspecified 15 

Type of Aircraft 

Single Engine Piston 10 

Multi-Engine Piston 12 

Turboprop 7 

Turbo Jet 128 

Helicopter 11 

Unspecified 8 

Time of Day 

12 a.m. – 5 a.m. 5 

5 a.m. – 8 a.m. 2 

8 a.m. – 6 p.m. 84 

6 p.m. – 12 a.m. 85 

Total Comments = 176 

Comment Breakdown: 

Household #1: 

87 (49%) 

Household #2: 

12 (7%) 

Household #3: 

9 (5%) 

42



Oxnard Noise Comment Report 

August 2023

 

Comments by Location Number of 
Comments 

Total Number 
of Households 

West of Victoria & South of 5th (Channel 
Islands, Oxnard Shores, Seabridge, etc.) 

165 

South Neighborhoods (Via Marina, etc.) 6 

East Neighborhoods 5 

North Neighborhoods 5 

Other/Unspecified 18 Unknown 

Type of Operation 

Takeoff/Departure 22 

Landing/Arrival 0 

Traffic Pattern 143 

Unspecified 34 

Time of Day 

12 a.m. – 5 a.m. 4 

5 a.m. – 8 a.m. 6 

8 a.m. – 6 p.m. 176 

6 p.m. – 12 a.m. 13 

Type of Aircraft 

Single Engine Piston 123 

Multi-Engine Piston 24 

Turboprop 0 

Turbo Jet 16 

Helicopter 22 

Unspecified 14 

Total Comments = 199 

Comment Breakdown: 

Household #1: 

103 (52%) 

Household #2: 

20 (10%) 

Household #3: 

13 (7%) 

43



AUGUST 2023 

CAMARILLO AIRPORT – AIRPORT LAYOUT PLAN UPDATE/NARRATIVE REPORT 
Status Update:  

• Draft Facility Requirements chapter has been completed and submitted to airport staff.  Consultant
is awaiting feedback in order to coordinate for translation.

• Working on Draft Alternatives chapter related to the Narrative Report.
• Working on drawings associated with the ALP Drawing Set.

Upcoming Action Items: 
• Prepare the Facility Requirements and Alternatives chapters for upcoming Public Information

Workshop.
• Next Public Information Workshop scheduled for November 14, 2023.

Project Percent Complete: The project is 60.4% complete through August 2023.  

CAMARILLO AIRPORT – BEACON RELOCATION 
Status Update: 

• Consultant is responding to FAA comments on the CatEx.  The Consultant has requested public
meeting minutes from airport staff per FAA comments.

• Airport staff submitted ALP pen & ink to Justin Guan (FAA).
Upcoming Action Items: 

• Resubmittal of CatEx to the FAA for review and approval.
Project Percent Complete: The project is 91.2% complete through August 2023. 

CAMARILLO AIRPORT – PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY 
Status Update: 

• Completed data analysis of 31 days of noise measurement samples collected through August 1.
• Produced ads for September public information workshop in English and Spanish for print and digital

publication as follows: September 7, 10, 21 and 24 in VC Star, September 7 and September 21 in Vida,
September 9 and 23 in the Camarillo Acorn and September 8 and 22 in the Thousand Oaks Acorn.

• Revised meeting summary in English and Spanish, including responses to 67 PAC member questions.
• Draft Chapter 4, Noise Impacts submitted to airport staff for internal review on August 9.
• Appendix C, Resource Library submitted to airport staff on August 24.

Upcoming Action Items: 
• Revise Chapter 3 and 4 based on airport staff feedback.
• Submit Appendix D, Supplemental Noise to airport staff for internal review.
• Submit Appendix F, Noise Measurement Program to airport staff for internal review.
• Translation and QA/QC of Chapter 3, Chapter 4, and Appendix C, D and F.
• Planning Advisory Committee meeting scheduled for September 26, 2023.
• Public Information Workshop scheduled for September 26, 2023.

Project Percent Complete: The project is 31.8% complete through August 2023. 

44



OXNARD AIRPORT – PART 150 NOISE COMPATIBILITY STUDY 
Status Update: 

• Completed data analysis of 31 days of noise measurement samples collected through August 1.
• Produced ads for September public information workshop in English and Spanish for print and digital

publication as follows: September 7, 10, 21 and 24 in VC Star, September 7 and September 21 in Vida,
September 9 and 23 in the Camarillo Acorn and September 8 and 22 in the Thousand Oaks Acorn.

• Revised meeting summary in English and Spanish, including responses to 67 PAC member questions.
• Draft Chapter 4, Noise Impacts submitted to airport staff for internal review on August 9.
• Appendix C, Resource Library submitted to airport staff on August 24.

Upcoming Action Items: 
• Revise Chapter 3 and 4 to address airport staff feedback.
• Submit Appendix D, Supplemental Noise to airport staff for internal review.
• Submit Appendix F, Noise Measurement Program to airport staff for internal review.
• Translation and QA/QC of Chapter 3, Chapter 4, and Appendix C, D and F.
• Planning Advisory Committee meeting scheduled for September 25, 2023.
• Public Information Workshop scheduled for September 25, 2023.

Project Percent Complete: The project is 34.0% complete through August 2023. 

ANNUAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT (AEA No. 24-01) 
Status Update: 

• N/A
Upcoming Action Items: 

• Coordination as needed to follow-up previous items and assist with new items at the direction of
airport staff.

Project Percent Complete: 3.9% of the not-to-exceed amount of $125,000 has been completed through 
August 2023.  

45



September 11, 2023 

Mrs. Erin Powers 

Projects Administrator 

County of Ventura Department of Airports 

555 Airport Way, Suite B 

Camarillo, CA 93010 

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update – August 2023 

Dear Mrs. Powers, 

Below is a summary of the tasks completed during the month of August 2023, by Jviation, for the Camarillo 

Airport: 

Conceptual Design for Runway/Taxiway Reconstruction (AIP Project No. 3-06-0339-039-2022) 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• Throughout the month of August, Jviation continued to work on the conceptual design following FAA

standards with a crown along the runway centerline.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will continue with the conceptual design per FAA standard.

 Jviation will provide the County with an updated cost estimate for this project.

 Continued coordination on this project with the County and FAA as needed.

Runway 8-26 and Taxiway A Pavement Improvements (County Project No. AEA 22-08) 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• Upcoming:

 Continued coordination on this project with the County.

 County to provide review comments on the CSPP and Issued for Review documents.

Airport Pavement Management System (APMS) Update 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will coordinate with subconsultants to assist with the completion of this project.

 County to provide comments on Jviation’s scope of work.

Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) Update 

• There were no updates from August 2023 on this task.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will wait for direction from the County on any future tasks.

46



If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Jviation, a Woolpert Company 

Matt Gilbreath, P.E. 

Project Manager 

cc: Mr. Keith Freitas, Mr. Dave Nafie – County of Ventura Department of Airports 

Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. JD Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr, Ms. Amanda Gross – Jviation, 

a Woolpert Company 

File   

47



September 12, 2023 

Mrs. Erin Powers 

Projects Administrator 

County of Ventura Department of Airports 

555 Airport Way, Suite B 

Camarillo, CA 93010 

Re: Monthly Airport Project Status Update – August 2023 

Dear Mrs. Powers, 

Below is a summary of the tasks completed during the month of August 2023, by Jviation and our 

subconsultants for the Oxnard Airport: 

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-038-2021 – Runway 7-25 Reconstruction 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will continue project coordination with the County and FAA.

 County to provide Jviation with the Sponsor items needed for the Construction Closeout Report.

 FAA to sign the FAA format of Change Order No. 6 which is for the reconciliation of as-built

quantities. 

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-042-2022 – Connector Taxiways A-E Reconstruction 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• Throughout the month of August, Jviation coordinated with Granite Construction (Granite) on

material submittals, requests for information, payroll reviews, and proposed construction schedule.

Jviation also submitted daily reports to the County for each day of monitoring construction

activities.

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation coordinated with the FAA on the

proposed construction schedule for this project.

• On August 1, 8, and 15, 2023, Jviation conducted the weekly construction meetings for this project,

and it was attended by the County, FAA, Granite, and subcontractors for Jviation and Granite.

• On August 1, 2023, Jviation coordinated with the County regarding weather days and project delays

and its effect on the overall project day count.

• On August 2, 2023, Jviation coordinated with the County and Granite regarding the low air voids in

the asphalt placed the previous two nights on Taxiways B and C. Jviation proposed full rejection of

the lot and the County agreed with the full rejection of the paved lot. Jviation issued a formal

rejection letter to Granite on August 3, 2023.

• On August 2, 2023, Jviation provided the County with an overall day count tracking schedule,

including any weather days, project delays, and FAA moratoriums.

48



• On August 4, 2023, Jviation provided the County with an updated Airport Diagram reflecting the

taxiway designation and geometry changes.

• On August 5, 14, and 30, 2023, Jviation submitted the Weekly Construction Progress and Inspection

Reports to the FAA and County.

• On August 7, 2023, Jviation coordinated with the County regarding options to reduce the dust and

foreign object debris generated by the project along Taxiway F.

• On August 7, 2023, Jviation provided the County with the updated tenant flyer for review and

distribution.

• On August 8, 2023, Contractor Pay Application No. 4 was fully signed by and distributed to all

parties.

• On August 8, 2023, Jviation provided Granite with the Extension of Contract letter, granting Granite

five weather days and three days for delays associated with Field Directive No. 3.

• On August 8, 2023, Jviation provided the FAA with the electrical as-built CAD drawings.

• On August 10, 2023, Jviation coordinated with the County and Airport Operations to issue a NOTAM

for the taxiway designation change to occur on August 11, 2023.

• On August 11, 2023, Granite completed the haul route repair along the vehicle service road adjacent

to Taxiway F.

• On August 14, 2023, Jviation, Granite, and the County coordinated on the annual report deadline for

the SWPPP permit for the project. The annual report was uploaded by Granite on August 23, 2023.

• On August 14, 2023, the FAA approved County Change Order No. 2 for grant participation.

• On August 14, 2023, Jviation provided the County with the Preliminary Punchlist for the project for

review. The Preliminary Punchlist was issued to Granite the same day.

• On August 14, 2023, Jviation provided the County with the draft Expiration of Day Count letter for

review. The County approved the letter on August 22, 2023 and the letter was issued to Granite on

August 31, 2023.

• On August 15, 2023, Jviation, Granite, the County, Airport Operations, and Airport Maintenance

completed a project site walk and generated several punch list items.

• On August 16, 2023, Granite substantially completed project construction. Taxiways A2, A3, and A4

were reopened to allow aircraft operations.

• On August 22 and 29, 2023, Jviation and the County coordinated on the schedule for the PFAS

stockpile consolidation and taxiway edge repair. The PFAS stockpile consolidation was scheduled for

the week of September 5, 2023.

• On August 24, 2023, Jviation provided the County with an update regarding liquidated damages and

the additional labor and expenses by Jviation. Jviation will plan to provide the County with a

summary of the additional labor and expenses incurred in September 2023.

• On August 25, 2023, Jviation, Granite, and the County further coordinated on the repair for the

settled taxiway section along Taxiways A3 and A4. The taxiway edge repair was scheduled for the

night of August 28, 2023.

• On August 29, 2023, Jviation provided a response to a member of the public’s question regarding

the notice about stockpile consolidation and their concern regarding the generated dust from

excessive handling of the material.

• On August 29, 2023, Jviation provided Granite with the Final Punchlist for the project.

• On August 29, 2023, Jviation oversaw Granite’s repair of the settled areas along Taxiway A3 and A4.

• On August 30, 2023, Jviation coordinated with Granite and the County regarding the damaged

wooden lid which is a temporary for the electrical pull box adjacent to Taxiway F.

• On August 31, 2023, Contractor Pay Application No. 5 was distributed to all parties for signature.

49



• Upcoming:

 Jviation will continue project coordination with the County, FAA, and Granite.

 Jviation to provide the County with the subcontractor utilization and DBE reporting information.

 Execution of Contractor Pay Application No. 5 and distribution to all parties.

 Jviation to oversee Granite’s stockpile consolidation the week of September 5, 2023.

 Jviation to oversee Granite’s application of permanent pavement markings and grooving on

September 11 and 12, 2023.  

AIP Project No. 03-06-0179-043-2023 – Taxiway F Reconstruction (Design and Bidding) 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• On August 18, 2023, Jviation, the County, and Ninyo & Moore coordinated on the pre-construction

waste characterization work plan that was submitted to the Water Board in July 2023.

• On August 25, 2023, Jviation provided the County with a link to the bid documents for the project.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will continue project coordination with the County and Ninyo & Moore.

Airport Pavement Management System (APMS) Update 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will coordinate with subconsultants to assist with the completion of this project.

 County to provide comments on Jviation’s scope of work.

Air Traffic Control Tower (ATCT) Facility Assessment 

• Throughout the month of August, the County and Jviation discussed this project during coordination

meetings on August 3, 10, and 24, 2023.

• On August 24, 2023, the County provided Jviation with comments on the Facility Assessment report.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will continue project coordination with the County.

 Jviation will submit an updated Facility Assessment report to the County which includes lists of

improvements in the $800,000 to $1,000,000 range. 

Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) Update 

• There were no updates from August 2023 on this task.

• Upcoming:

 Jviation will wait for direction from the County on any future tasks.

On-Call Services 

• There were no updates from August 2023 on this task.

• Upcoming:

 County to provide the executed copy of the new On-Call Services contract.

50



If you have any comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Jviation, a Woolpert Company 

Matt Gilbreath, P.E. 

Project Manager 

cc: Mr. Keith Freitas, Mr. Dave Nafie – County of Ventura Department of Airports 

Mr. Travis Vallin, Mr. JD Ingram, Mr. Jason Virzi, Mr. Mike Quinn, Mrs. Marisa Fluhr, Ms. 

Amanda Gross, Ms. Tracey Salazar – Jviation, a Woolpert Company 

File  

51



AIRPORT TENANT 
PROJECT STATUS 

September 2023 
CAMARILLO  

 Airport Properties Limited (APL) Row I project received FAA required NEPA
review/approval.  Construction start pending updated permit approval.

OXNARD 

 5 and 7 acre RFP parcel developments concepts under discussion, preliminary
concept phase continues.

OTHER 

 None

52



Project R
eports-M

onthly\Faa Proj. R
eport.doc 

C
O

U
N

TY O
F VENTU

R
A

 
     D

EPA
RTM

ENT O
F A

IR
PO

R
TS 

Septem
ber 2023 

      FA
A

 G
R

A
N

T PR
O

JEC
TS      

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 
Estim

ate 
Low

 B
id 

C
C

O
’s 

C
laim

s 
D

esign 
Engr. 

C
ontractor 

Estim
ated Schedule or A

ctual D
ates 

%
 

C
om

pl 
D

esign
/ 

C
onst. 

R
em

arks 
B

id 
D

ate 
C

ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

5 
C

M
A Airport Layout 

Plan U
pdate 

$391,621 
C

offm
an 

Associates 
N

/A 
9/24/20 

9/30/20 
TBD

 
60 

The Airport received FAA 
approval to transition the 
M

aster Plan to an Airport 
Layout Plan (ALP) U

pdate 
to allow

 for com
m

unity 
concerns, like noise, to be 
addressed, w

ith a m
aster 

plan update to be revisited 
in a future year, should it 
be w

arranted.  
FAA aviation forecast 
approval has allow

ed for 
next chapter developm

ent 
to begin regarding facility 
requirem

ents.  N
ext ALP 

w
orkshop m

eeting 
tentatively scheduled for 
N

ovem
ber 14

th, 2023. 

5 
C

M
A C

onceptual 
D

esign for 2025 
R

W
Y and TW

Y 
R

econstruction 

$187,260 
Jviation 

N
/A 

9/19/22 
N

/A 
N

/A 
90 

The Airport executed a 
contract for the conceptual 
design and coordinated 
w

ith consultants to provide 
the FAA a C

atEx 
docum

ent on the future 
project.  FAA provided 
feedback on design 
standard requirem

ents and 
consultant w

ill provide 
draft docum

ents by 
O

ctober 1
st. 

5 
C

M
A Part 150 

N
oise C

om
patibility 

Study 

$770,943 
C

offm
an 

Associates 
N

/A 
9/30/22 

N
/A 

N
/A 

32 
FAA aviation forecast 
approval has allow

ed for 
next chapter developm

ent 
for the N

oise Exposure 
M

ap (N
EM

) elem
ent of the 

study.  The draft noise 

53



Project R
eports-M

onthly\Faa Proj. R
eport.doc 

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 
Estim

ate 
Low

 B
id 

C
C

O
’s 

C
laim

s 
D

esign 
Engr. 

C
ontractor 

Estim
ated Schedule or A

ctual D
ates 

%
 

C
om

pl 
D

esign
/ 

C
onst. 

R
em

arks 
B

id 
D

ate 
C

ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

contour m
aps and noise 

im
pact chapters w

ere 
shared w

ith the PAC
 and 

w
ith the public at a public 

m
eeting on Septem

ber 
26

th.  All com
m

ents 
received by O

ctober 15
th 

w
ill be used to determ

ine if 
any adjustm

ents to the 
draft chapters are required 
before subm

ission of the 
N

EM
s to the FAA for 

approval.  O
nce subm

itted, 
the Airport w

ill focus on 
the second half of the 
study, the N

oise 
C

om
patibility Plan to 

explore options to deal 
w

ith noise concerns raised 
by som

e of the com
m

unity. 

3 
O

XR
 R

W
Y & TW

Y 
C

onnector 
Transitions 
R

econstruction 

$12,832,636 
$12,274,001 

$124,906 
M

ead H
unt 

Sully-M
iller 

Inc. 

4/29/21 
7/20/21 

7/23/21 
2/28/22 

100 
99 

Final project closeout 
underw

ay.   

3 
O

XR
 TW

Y 
C

onnector 
R

econstruction 

$335,960 
7,706,536 

Jviation 
G

ranite 
C

onstruction 

4/26/22 
12/17/21 

TBD
 

4/3/23 
9/13/23 

100 
95 

C
onstruction com

pleted in 
Septem

ber.  Project 
closeout item

s rem
ain. 

3 
O

XR
 TW

Y 
C

onnector 
R

econstruction 
C

onstruction 
M

anagem
ent 

Services 

$674,799 
Jviation 

N
/A 

12/21/21 
4/3/23 

8/15/23 
92 

C
onstruction began April 

3, 2023.  Project w
as 

com
pleted in Septem

ber.  
Jviation w

ill be w
orking on 

final project and grant 
closeout item

s. 

54



Project R
eports-M

onthly\Faa Proj. R
eport.doc 

Sup. 
D

ist. 
Project N

am
e 

Spec. N
um

ber 
Estim

ate 
Low

 B
id 

C
C

O
’s 

C
laim

s 
D

esign 
Engr. 

C
ontractor 

Estim
ated Schedule or A

ctual D
ates 

%
 

C
om

pl 
D

esign
/ 

C
onst. 

R
em

arks 
B

id 
D

ate 
C

ontract 
A

w
ard 

C
onst 

Start 
C

onst 
C

om
p 

3 
O

XR
 Part 150 

N
oise C

om
patibility 

Study 

$770,943 
C

offm
an 

Associates 
N

/A 
9/30/22 

N
/A 

N
/A 

34 
FAA aviation forecast 
approval has allow

ed for 
next chapter developm

ent 
for the N

oise Exposure 
M

ap (N
EM

) elem
ent of the 

study.  The draft noise 
contour m

aps and noise 
im

pact chapters w
ere 

shared w
ith the PAC

 and 
w

ith the public at a public 
m

eeting on Septem
ber 

25
th.  All com

m
ents 

received by O
ctober 15

th 
w

ill be used to determ
ine if 

any adjustm
ents to the 

draft chapters are required 
before subm

ission of the 
N

EM
s to the FAA for 

approval.  O
nce subm

itted, 
the Airport w

ill focus on 
the second half of the 
study, the N

oise 
C

om
patibility Plan to 

explore options to deal 
w

ith noise concerns raised 
by som

e of the com
m

unity. 

3 
O

XR
 ATC

T Facility 
Assessm

ent 
$150,440 

Jviation 
N

/A 
12/21/22 

N
/A 

N
/A 

100 
Site assessm

ent 
com

pleted in M
arch.  Final 

docum
ent available soon.  

W
orking to utilize 

assessm
ent to identify 

grant eligible item
s of w

ork 
to subm

it a grant 
application. 

N
ote:  Shaded boxes indicate changes from

 previous m
onth 

C
M

A
 – C

am
arillo A

irport 
O

X
R

 – O
xnard A

irport 
TB

D
 – To be determ

ined 
C

C
O

 – C
ontract C

hange O
rders  

55



CMA Camarillo Airport | OXR Oxnard Airport 

2023 Meeting Schedules 

Camarillo & Oxnard 
Airport Authorities 
The Camarillo & Oxnard Airport 
Authorities meet jointly on the second 
Thursday of the month at 6:30 p.m. in 
the Department of Airports 
Administration Office, 555 Airport Way, 
Suite B, Camarillo, CA 93010, unless 
otherwise noted on the agenda. Changes 
or cancellations may occur. 

January 12 

February 9 (Canceled) 

March 9 

April 20 (Canceled) 

May 11 

June 8 (Canceled) 

July 13 

August 10 (Canceled) 

September 14 

October 12 

November 9 

December 14 

Aviation Advisory 
Commission

The Aviation Advisory Commission meets 
on the Wednesday preceding the second 
Thursday of the month at 6:30 p.m. in the 
Department of Airports Administration 
Office, 555 Airport Way, Suite B, Camarillo, 
CA 93010, unless otherwise noted on the 
agenda. Changes or cancellations may 
occur.

January 9 (Due to Holiday) 

February 6 (Canceled)

March 9 at 12:00 p.m. 

April 13 (Canceled) 

May 11 at 12:00 p.m.

June 8 at 12:00 p.m.

August 10 at 12:00 p.m. (Canceled)

September 13

July 13 at 12:00 p.m.

October 11

November 8

December 13

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76


	ADPBCFC.tmp
	Director, Keith Freitas addresses the amendment to agenda item 6.B that was sent to the Authorities.
	CAA Chair Scott Barer moved to hear agenda item 6.I, Receive and File Presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Airshow at Camarillo Airport, as the first agenda item.
	Recommendation:
	Receive and file a presentation on the Wings Over Camarillo Air Show taking place on August 19-20, 2023, at Camarillo Airport.
	Bob Trimborn, Operations Director, and Bill Thomas, Air Boss of the Wings Over Camarillo presented a detailed Power Point and answered various questions from the Authorities in regard to the event.
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors:
	Approve and authorize the Director of Airports or his designee to sign, the attached Third Amendment to Lease with Airport Properties Limited, LLC (APL) for development of a hangar complex at the Camarillo Airport (Exhibit 1).
	Lease Manager Madeline Herrle provided staff’s report.
	Recommendations:
	Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors:
	Recommendations:
	Staff requests that your Commission/Authority recommend that the Board of Supervisors:
	F. Subject:   Authorization for the Director of Airports or Designee to Award Annual Consulting-Services Contracts for FY 2023-2024 to Coffman Associates, Inc., Jviation, a Woolpert Company, Mead and Hunt, Inc., and The Adams Companies, LLC, and to Is...
	Recommendations:
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:

	ADP11E4.tmp
	Due to clerical error, minutes from July 13, 2023, were inadvertently omitted from the agenda packet sent to the Authorities and posted on the Department website. Agenda item #4 (APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 13, 2023), is tabled for review at the next A...
	Recommendation:
	Recommendations:
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	Receive and file an update on current status of the transition for Private Hangar owners at the Oxnard and Camarillo Airports from the month-to-month lease to the long term (20-year) ground lease, and the proposed timeline and actions to complete the ...
	Chair Scott Barer suggests extending the timeline until the end of the year and commence the Unlawful Detainer legal proceedings to January 2023 due to the upcoming holiday and vacation traveling. The suggestion is noted by staff.

	ADPA901.tmp
	Oxnard Airport Authority
	555 Airport Way, Suite B
	Recommendation:


	ADP2B14.tmp
	Oxnard Airport Authority
	555 Airport Way, Suite B
	Recommendation:


	ADPC8C.tmp
	Aviation Advisory Commission
	Camarillo Airport Authority
	Oxnard Airport Authority
	555 Airport Way, Suite B

	ADP509C.tmp
	Recommendation:

	Reports.pdf
	ADP1342.tmp
	September 2023                                         FAA GRANT PROJECTS
	CCO’s
	Estimated Schedule or Actual Dates

	Estimate
	Coffman Associates
	Coffman Associates


	ADPFC21.tmp
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:
	Recommendation:

	13 Meeting Calendar AAC Only Pending Approval.pdf
	Blank Page




